CATS

CRPITRL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
JULY 16, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

. CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
Il. ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor
lll. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JUNE 18, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
IV. PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue
V. SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson
V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
Vil. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue (no meeting held)
Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux (no meeting held)
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman (no meeting held)
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

08 I o



Viil. ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of approval of CATS Capital Asset Policy

2. Consideration of approval of Jeanette Eckert as Records Officer

3. Consideration of approval to award bus washer systems contract
4, Consideration of approval to amend audit services contract

5. Consideration of approval to designhate The Advocate as the official

journal of CATS as set forth in the CATS Bylaws
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

X. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802.

Individuals needing special accommeodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225) 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting. .

N




1.

V.

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEMI

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
JUNE 18, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
Mr. Bellue called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL

Present at the meeting were members Messrs. Bellue, Brandt, Breaux,
Cohran, Lambert, and O’Gorman and Mss. Perkins and Pierre. Ms. Green
was absent. Also present were Mr. Bill Deville, CEO; Mr. Darrell Brown,
CAO; other CATS staff; Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members of
the public.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 21, 2019 MEETING

Ms. Perkins moved to approve the minutes of the May 21, 2019, meeting
and Mr. Lambert seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.
PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Bellue reviewed the public comment process.

SAFETY MOMENT



Vi.

Ms. Simpson noted that June is National Safety Month. She shared the
names of 48 operators who had zero preventable accidents in the last
fwelve months,

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff

" Mr. Jim Fight shared that the agency hosted its Behind the Wheel job
fair on June 4" and that more than 250 job.seekers attended the
event. The agency has extended the following offers of full-time
employment: Operator — 20; Mecha ; Utility Technician - 2;
Customer Care Representative — ustodian — 1. Mr. Fight

noted that he hoped to have a ass starting June 25",

re were 34.6 complaints
miles between road

. ed the board that CATS Five Year Program of
Projects was adopted at the June 12" MPO Transportation Policy
Committee meeting.

Planning and Grants staff attended an FTA-seonsored Triennial
Review workshop in Baton Rouge on June 4™ and 5™.

Planning submiited a Bus and Bus Facilities grant award application
for four electric trolleys and six electric buses.




Mr. Deville shared the balance sheet for May 2019 and noted that the
agency’s total current assets are $30,629,829. The total current
liabilities are $6,270,918.

Mr. Deville provided the statement of operating budget versus actual
for the period ending May 31, 2019. He noted the total operating
expenses were $2,528,792, The total operating revenues were
$256,179 and the total operating subsidies were $4,629,245. The net
operating balance for the month was $2,356,632.

Vil. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
1. Finance and Executive: Mr. Mark |

Mr. Bellue referred the mem
June 13" meeting in their

kets. He shared the.
ld be considered-

o the minutes of the committee’s
ts. He invited Ms. Tiffani Dorsa of

rred the members to the minutes of the
7™ meeting in their packets and shared the

5. Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

Ms. Perkins referred the members to the minutes of the committee’s
June 12 meeting in their packets and shared the highlights of the
meeting. :




She noted that she attended the customer service training that was
conducted by the Southwest Transit Association (SWTA) and was
pleased to hear the information shared at the training session.

Mr. Bryan Basford of MV Transportation noted that there were 8,656
scheduled trips in May; of those, 615 were cancellations and 479
were no-shows for a total of 7,562 completed trips. There were 2
complaints for the month and the on-time percentage was 86.9%.
There were 0 road calls for the month of May.

Mr. Basford shared that the conversi

software was proving very beneficia there was already a

1 April to 11 in May.

96,065 total rider
were 816,045 se

Mr. Basford thanked:
opportumty__to devel

authorization for cost expenditures associated with
and fifteen per cent (15%) design for Plank-
orridor Project

here was a lengthy discussion at the F&E Committee
meeting, where some of the topics included the scope, timeline, and
cost. It was noted that the F&E Committee unanimously
recommended the expenditures be approved.

Mr. Cohran moved that the CEQ is authorized to spend $229,000 for
cost expenditures associated with NEPA completion and fifteen per
cent {15%) design for the Plank-Nicheolson BRT Corridor Project and




Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed with Mr. Lambert abstaining.

Consideration of approval to award contract for design services for
transit amenities

Mr. Brown shared that the agency solicited qualifications for transit
amenities design. The RFQ was sent to 98 architectural &
engineering firms, including 27 small business and DBE firms. The
agency received six proposals in resp to the RFQ.

The Proposal Evaluation Committee comprised of both CATS
staff and external stakeholders, ar eviewed all the
submissions.

ng Law, notice is hereby given that this claim is
pending inthe 19" Judicial District Court and is Suit Number
640,054, Sec. 22; and that Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha
Davis, and Carla Davis are the plaintiffs and Capital Area Transit
System and Eric Marselis are the defendants.)

Mr. Bellue moved to enter executive session to discuss the pending
litigation and Mr. Brandt seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited
public comment and there was none. The motion passed
unanimously with no abstentions.




XL

Following the executive session, Mr. Brandt moved that the CEO is
authorized to settle the claims of Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr.,
Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis under the terms of the settlement and
judgment payment policy adopted by the Beard on July 20, 2004 as
amended in the amount of $975,000 and Mr. O'Gorman seconded the
motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was none. The
motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments.

ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Perkins moved to adjourn th
motion. The motion passed unani

1eeting and Mr. |

imbert seconded the
usly with no abstenti




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

Bill Deville
Chief Executive Officer

Darrell Brown
Chief Administrative Officer

Dwana Williams
Chief Operations Officer

brecats.com

CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
June 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

SAFETY MOMENT: Renee Simpson
June is National Safety Month, and the agency would like to recognize the following
operators who have had zero accidents in the last twelve months:

e Frederica e Toye Hebert LaDonna
Albert e Kimla Hudson Robertson

e Tabitha e Kimberly Diana
Armwood Johnson Robinson

e Falesha e Natasha Juanita
Augustus Johnson Sanford

e Janie Brown e Charisa Jones Sandra

e Jerry Brown e Janice Kinchen Sparrow

*  Michael Butler e Reginald Terrica Tanner
e Jacqueline Cain Lanieu Robert Tate
e Regina e Samual Lee Debra Taylor
Celestine e Gretchen Ebony Thomas
e Shontel Major Evette Thomas
Chenevert e Walter Mattire Tiffany Variste
e Michelle e Beverly Andrus Walker
Cockerham McMorris Jennifer Watts
e Shekar Gibson e Alethea Olinde Chaundra
e Marlon Gotch e Jamira White
e Demetrice Patterson Terez Wicker
Green e Zaldreka Tammy Wilson
e Alfreda Reddix
Harrison

HUMAN RESOURCES: Jim Fight

CATS hosted its Behind the Wheel Job Fair on Tuesday, June 4™ at the

Automotive Campus of BRCC,

o More than 250 job seekers came to the event and more than 196

were interviewed by CATS staff on hand for the event.

o The agency looks to make up to 35 potential offers based on the

interviews conducted.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams

Operations now has 127 active.

See attached Performance Measures.



2250 Flarida Boulevard Cl I I S

Batﬂl‘l Rouge I.A 70802 CRAPITRL ARERA TRARNSIT SYSTEM

PHONE:  225.389.8920

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

e ETC Institute will be in Baton Rouge beginning June 17" to conduct the next
round of customer satisfaction surveys.

e  Will Scott & Company, an executive search firm specializing in transit industry
hires, developed profiles an 26 candidates for the newly created Deputy Chief
Executive Officer (DECQ) position.

o After reviewing the top ten candidate profiles, four finalists were
determined. Under the guidance of the Scott Company and our own
HR Director Jim Fight, two interview panels were established,
comprising a cross section of management staffers who conducted
group session interviews with candidates.

o Follow-up interviews were also held with ATU leadership as well as a
close-out interview with the HR Director and CEO.

o Two of the four candidates were interviewed; one declined to take a
higher paying management position with a southern Florida transit
agency, and the other removed themselves for personal health
reasons.

o Adecision will be made within the next week to ten days. All
candidates were actively working and requested confidentiality in
case they didn’t get the position so they could maintain their current
jobs.

e The CEO was invited by the new BREC Superintendent, Corey Wilson, to meet
and discuss how BREC and CATS could collaborate. Mr. Wilson explained he
would like to see access to and from all of BREC facilities as this is key to its
current and future success.

o Mr. Wilson felt it was important to create a dialogue with CATS as
BREC embarks on several multimillion dollar capital investment
projects.

e There was discussion with Chris Tyson, President and CEO of the newly
rebranded Build Baton Rouge (formerly the East Baton Rouge Redevelopment
Authority) regarding any potential for New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC),
within our existing program and project sites

o Additionally, a meeting was had with BBR’s new markets tax credit
consultant group to review our capital and operation plans, looking
for potential NMTCs within the confines of our capital program sites.

e The CEO was invited to attend an Urban League Urban Round Table Luncheon
meeting on Wednesday, June 12",

e The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Transportation Policy
Committee (TPC), comprised of mayors and presidents of East Baton Rouge
and surrounding parishes as well as CATS, met on June 12" the CATS
Preliminary Program of Projects was on agenda for approval.

 EXECUTIVE STAFF

PLANNING AND GRANTS: Garrick Rose
e CATS Five Year Program of Projects was adopted at the June 12, 2019 MPO
Transportation Policy Committee.

breats.com




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

 EXECUTIVE STAFF

breats.com

CATS

CAPITRL RRER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

Planning and Grants staff attended an FTA-sponsored Triennial Review
workshop in Baton Rouge on June 4™ and 5"

Planning has a follow-up meeting scheduled with Our Lady of the Lake staff to
continue the discussion regarding CATS service to the new hospital campus,
slated to open in October 2019.

Planning submitted a Bus and Bus Facilities grant award application for four
electric trolleys and six electric buses.

The National Transit Database (NTD) report was submitted on May 31%.

FACILITIES PLANNING: James Baker or Garrick Rose
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:

Legal counsel for CATS is working with LSU officials to complete certain
legislative requirements prior to executing the purchase agreement.

East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:

Construction is underway at the Cortana Transit Center and the passenger
loading area is also proceeding.
o Demolition, site preparations, and electrical and security camera lines
are in place.
o Concrete work is progressing regardless of the recent rain events.
o DPW has approved the contractor’s traffic plan along Oak Villa Drive,
which allows the demolition of the bus staging area to proceed.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank Road BRT, Phase One:

The SIB engineering team continues to collaborate with the HNTB design
group as well as the City-Parish Department of Public Works to ensure
seamless cooperation and coordination for all station engineering and
amenities design decisions.

It has been agreed that advancing the final engineering phase of Plank Road
Phase One is subject to environmental clearance for the entire Plank-
Nicholson BRT Project. Based on HNTB's assessment, the environmental
approval is projected to be received in the fall.

Plank-Nicholson BRT:

It has been agreed that the Plank-Nicholson BRT Project will pursue funding
under the BUILD grant application, which is due July 15", HNTB has discussed
on several occasions the rational to pursue the BUILD grant. CATS
management has reviewed HNTB'’s proposed work program to prepare to
advance conceptual design and NEPA materials as well as the BUILD
application.

o The project justification, work plan, schedule, and budget has been
determined to be acceptable. Critical in this effort is the expedient
production of material for the NEPA process and environmental
approval.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:  225.389.8920

bhrecats.com

CATS

CRPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

BRT Transit Amenities:

After a successful RFQ evaluation process, a design firm has been deemed
qualified and responsible and has been selected to provide the necessary
design services for the fabrication, delivery, and installation of custom transit
shelters, an information kiosk, BRT signage, and other related amenities for
the BRT stations and high profile transit sites. A recommendation for an
approval to award a contract is listed as an action item.



0102

LT9'ETT

L¥9'T0T

G8Y'ETZ

£91°12C

ESY'TTT

6T0C ™

£29'€02

£€209TC

219'sve

99€°8T¢

T62LTE

L96'STT

Y9¥'T1T

€99°cTe

TvZ'81e

YZETET

160'612

2585912

8T0Z m

"2aQ

"AON

N0

1dag

‘Sny

Ajnr

aunf

Aeln

[dy

IRIAl

‘ged

‘uer

diysiapry

000'0S

000°00T

000°0ST

000002

000052

000°00€

1LFISAS HENEL B3k THLdD

o183




sdo1s sng wWajsAs |p101 3y fo 9/ £ 7T 1UaSAIdal YIIym SIUI0dawn pajnpayds 1o Painspalu s doupbwiaofiad awy-uQ 310N
DUBWIOND SWI-UQ %08 1251e]

%LV'99 | %I6'E9 | %6V'P9 | %89'09 | %9Z°L9

%L6°L9

6T0Z ™

%0799

%899 %E99 %6°L9 %< L9 %0°69 %Z°89 %8°L9 %C L9 %98°59 | %8E'99

%TL99

810w

=14

*AON 10 1dag ‘Sny AInr aunf Aen jady yoseal ‘go4

‘uer

dUBWIOMId dWI]-UQ

%00°0

%0001
%0002
%00°0€
%00°0F
%00°0S
%00°09
%00°0L
%00°08
%00°06

%00°00T

UUBLSAS LISNGH] 43 T 1idh)

ol8d




SL°688|SC°867 (S LT8| €'TTS |SE00C| 9°€ELT sdis} snq paj|@dued 610Z
S8E | ¥'6EE | 9CE 91¢ 792 761 £6¢ T0¢ €6 99 £0vZ | 9'6CC sdiil sng pa||@aued 8107
0€'L6 | 0586 | 05°£6 | 0586 | 0E'66 | OV 66 pajesadQ sdii] sng panpayds % 6T0Z m
0,86 | 0686 | 06'86 | 0E'66 | 0T'66 | OFV'66 | 0166 | OF'66 | 0466 | 08°66 | 066 | 0E'66 | palesadQ sdii] sng pP2|npayss Jo % 8T0Z m
090 | 'AON | PQ | 3des | Bny | Ajnr | aunp | Aewy | udy | uen | ged ‘uer
000
00°0T
0002
00°0¢
00°0% 5
a
m
=3
00°0S o
o
(1]
i S
0009 3
2
wv
00°0L o
©
o
00°08 =
[= 1
00706
00°00T UB164S DL B8 1k
6T0C-810¢

paiesadQ sdui] sng o

5150




s8uipieog 000°00T 42d sjulejdwo) Jswolsn) gz ueys ssa| 32sie Lo

€S

9'vE

e

T'LS

L'TE

9°9¢

6T0Z W

Liv

€L

€8¢

9'9€

8'0€

T've

8'LE

T°g€

6'¢c

6°'S¢C

L'ET

6'1€E

8T0Z M

22d

*AON

‘PO

“1das

Sny

Anr

aunf

Aep

[dy

Yaue

‘q24

‘uer

sSulpieog 000‘00T 43d Siuiejdwo) Jowoisn)

01
14
0€
or
0§

09

LU3LSAS LIENHHL H38H LD

5163




S3|IIAI 000°00T 42d SIUDPINY 3|qeluanald §'¢ 193.e],

€L'0 0T 0T L'T 8's v 610C ™
6'T £ €1 81 91 L1 L1 9’1 L0 €1 TT S°E 810Cm
=T "AON 190 -1dag “Sny Aing aunf Aey ady yase ‘gqod ‘uer 5
T
4
€
v
S
9
L

S9IIAl 000°00T J3d S3U3PIIY 3|geluanaid

\U3ISAS LSNHL H5HH Telehid

5183




‘YIv'6 | LET'L | €8S'L | STV'V | TEL'T | TT6'E

S|IeD PeoyY "12d S9N UBIIN 6TOT =

8LEY | TVE'S | TL6'S | TL8'% | €ES'S | 8299 | 89L'9 | 65C'L | T¥T'9 | STI'6 | 8T8'0T | TIS¥

S1|ED peoy "19g S9N UB3IN 8TOZ

32Q "NON ‘120 1dag Bny Anr aunf Aey |udy SL=ITN| ‘gqa4 ‘uer

S||eD peoy uaamiag Sa|l|A] UedA]

000T

000y

0009

0008

000°0T

000°CT

W3ISAS {15 L by THldsd

5180




Capital Area Transit System

Page 1
Statement of Operating Budget vs. Actual :
For the Period Ended June, 2019
Current Month Year to Date
2019 Approved
Budget Actual Var. Amount Budget Actual Var. Amount Annual Budget
Operating Expenses
Labor $907,132 $1,021,131 (5113,999) $5,442,792 $4.918,056 $524,736 $10,885,584
Fringe Benefits $540,182 $653,622 ($113,440) $3,241,090 $3,325,994 (584,904) $6,482,179
Total Labor and Fringe Benefits $1,447,314 $1,674,752 (5227,439) $8,683,881 $8,244,050 $439,831 $17,367,763
Casualty and Liability $140,540 $61,474 $79,066 $843,239 $643,037 $200,202 $1,686,478
Services $149.226 $160,800 ($11,574) $895,355 51,124,961 (5229,606) $1,790,709
Purchased Transportation $187,500 $207,744 (820,244) $1,125,000 $1,203,327 (578,327) $2,250,000
Materials & Supplies $227.770 $351.458 ($123,688) $1,366.619 $2,061,644 ($695,025) $2,733,238
Utilities $22,667 $15.720 $6,947 $136,000 $87.345 $48,655 $272,000
Miscellaneous Expenses $61.650 $49.815 $11,835 $369,900 $512,572 (5142,672) $739,799
Leases and Rentals $13,333 $7,344 $5,990 $80,000 $40,553 $39.447 $160,000
Total Operating Expenses $2,249,999 $2,529,107 ($279,109) $13,499,993 513,917,489 ($417,496) $26,999,987
Operating Revenues
Passenger Paid Fares $141,803 $129,620 ($12,182) $850.815 $844,237 (56,578) $1,701,630
Special Transit Fares (Contract) $25,943 $19,276 ($6,668) $155,660 $120,732 ($34,928) $311,319
ADA/Paratransit Revenue $7,667 $10,599 $2.933 $46,000 $39,419 ($6,581) $92,000
Advertising Revenue $61,054 $49,697 ($11.357) $366,324 $328.401 (837,923) §732,647
[nterest Income $13.515 $16,692 $3,176 §81,092 $113,716 $32,624 $162,183
Other Agency Revenue $14,947 $39,947 $25,000 $89,683 $128,946 $39,263 5179,3606
Total Operating Revenues $264,929 $265,831 5902 $1,589,573 $1,575,450 (514,122) $3,179,145
Operating Shortfall/Subsidy Requiredl ($1,985,070) ($2,263,277) $280,010 | I ($11,910,421)( ($12,342,039) $403,373 ($23,820.842)
Federal, State & Local Subsidies)
Non Federal Revenue
Hotel/Motel Tax $104,235 $0 ($104,235) $625,411 $918,200 $292,789 51,250,823
Parish Transportation Fund $45,833 $137,500 $91,667 $275,000 $275,000 $0 $550,000
Property Tax Revenue 51,467,373 51,467,373 50 $8,804,235 $8.804,235 S0 $17,608,470
Total Non Federal Subsidies $1,617,441 $1,604,873 (812,569) $9,704,646 $9,997,435 $292,789 $19,409,293
Federal Operating Subsidies
FTA - Preventive Maintenance $348.879 50.00 ($348,879) $2,093,274 $2.907,950 $814.676 $4,186,549
FTA - Planning $18,750 $0 ($18,750) $112,500 $0 ($112,500) $225,000
Total Federal Subsidies $367,629 50 (8367,629) $2,205,774 $2,907,950 $702,176 $4,411,549
Total Operating Subsidies $1,985,070 $1,604,873 ($380,198)| | $11,910,421 | $12,905,385 $994,964 $23,820,842
Net Operations Balance +/- S0 ($638,404) I | 40 $563,347 50




Capital Area Transit System

Balance Sheet

June, 2019
6/30/2019 6/30/2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,666,680 5,506,266
Accounts Receivable 706,549 304,160
Property Tax Receivable 17,300,802 17,291,859
Due from Governments 3,081,675 908,194
Notes Receivable 0 0
Interest and Dividends Receivable 0 0
Inventory 187,150 578,655
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 20,168 72,823
Total Current Assets: 28,963,025 | 24,661,958
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 695,900 694,618
Total Restricted Assets: 695,900 694,618
Investments 0 0
Net Pension Asset, Long-Term 1,466,268 490,522
Equipment, Net 24,901,972 20,414,218
Total Assets 56,027,165 ] 46,261,316
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 4,521,888 385,488
Accrued Payroll and Tax Liabilities 285,806 (479,108)
Accrued Interest (Bus Lease) {0) {0)
Note Payable 0 0
Accrued Compensated Absences 424,440 142,274
Claims Payable and Related Liabilities 855,488 883,056
Capital Lease Payable 236,889 (328,137)
Deferred Revenue (Grants/Prop Tax) {0 6,585,984
Other Current Liabilities 0 0
Total Current Liabilities 6,324,511 7,189,557
Long-Term Liabilities
Note Payable, Less Current Portion 0 0
Accrued Compensated Absences, Less Current Portion 0 266,320
Capital Lease Payable, Less Current Portion 2,788,983 3,938,590
Estimated Liabilities 3,249,053 1,192,231
Total Long-Term Liabilities 6,038,036 5,397,141
Total Liabilities 12,362,547 | 12,586,698
Net Assets:
Investments in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 21,876,101 16,803,765
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted 21,788,518 16,870,853
Total Net Assets: 43,664,619 33,674,618
Total Liabilities And Net Assets 56,027,165 46,261,316




CHTS

CAPITAL RREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters. .

MEETING OF THE
504/COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
JULY 10, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES

The 504/Community Relations Committee met on Wednesday, July 10, 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were Linda Perkins, Antoinette Pierre, Bill Deville, Dwana
Williams, Karen Denman, Mr. Terrance Durousseau, members of CATS staff, and
Crystal Wilson of MV Transportation.

Introduction

Ms. Perkins welcomed those assembled and thanked them for coming. She
noted that Mr. Basford was in Paris and that Ms. Crystal Wilson would be giving
the MV report.

MV Transportation Report —
Ms. Wilson of MV Transportation noted that CATS On Demand had 8,066
scheduled trips in June. Of the scheduled trips, 7,416 were completed; 650 were

cancellations and 255 were no-shows. It was noted that MV is still working with
several vans being down long-term.

Ms. Wilson noted that 49% of the trips were subscription and 51% were demand
trips.

Ms. Wilson shared that there were zero complaints for the month.
Ms. Wilson noted that the on-time performance for the month was 92.1%.
It was noted that there were five road calls for the month.

Certifications — Karen Denman



V.

Ms. Denman shared the certification numbers for June for CATS On Demand.
There were 31 applications mailed in June. Of those, 21 were certified, seven
were temporary certifications and no one was deemed ineligible during the
month. There were three recertifications for the month. Ms. Denman noted that
the vehicles being down meant a reduction in the number of recertifications.

Ms. Denman noted that she and Mr. Jimmy Thomas are making phone calls
regarding the no-shows and explaining the rules to the customers.

Mr. Deville shared that the upcoming microtransit service will assist in the
service that is being requested in the Blount Road area that is beyond the
paratransit corridor.

Customer service — Angella Wynn and Dwana Williams

Ms. Wynn noted there were 91 total complaints received in June. There were33
that required corrective action and there were also five commendations for the

month.

Ms. Wynn shared there were eight complaints for being passed up, two for
courtesy, and 23 for performance.

Ms. Wynn let the committee know that, in June, the Customer Care Department
fielded an average of 1,220 calls daily and customers were on hold an average of

26 seconds. .

There was considerable discussion of the reason for the continued increase in
monthly complaints. It was noted that weather played a role in many of the
complaints.

There was discussion surrounding the inaccurate information being shared
between operations and customer care and it was noted that internali
communications must be improved.

Mr. Charles Odimgbe was introduced as the new Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and he noted that he would be working with the Operations and Customer Care
Departments to work on necessary improvements.

When asked if there were complaints consistently on the same routes, it was
noted that much of the issue comes from interlining.

Discussion of operator training — Dwana Williams
Ms. Williams shared that SWTA conducted customer service training for all
operators and customer care representatives. It was reiterated in those fraining

sessions that internal communication must be a priority.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




puewsq % = uondudsqns % m 1209 Hdd
6T _ 61
T-unr -Aely GT-Jdy GT-IEIN 61-624 6T-Uef §T-220 8T-1ON 81-120 §1-das mﬁ.mé 8T-Inr | BT-UN[ -Aep 6T-4dY 6T-JEW 6T-924 6T-UE[ 8T-09Q 8T-AON 8T-100 8T-das gT-3ny I-T
%o 000
. : %0T .
%07 050
. %0E 00T
: %Qt
%09 0S'T
; %09 !
007
%0L
%08 = a5
%06
| 00t AlIAoNpoUd (Hdd) 4noH 434 sia8uassed
|1B0H d10 =
6T-unf 6T-Ae 61-dy BT-1EW 61-924 gT-uer 81-22g 8T-nON 81190 g1-das 8T-8ny gT-INr

: , %0°SL
il = - %0°08
. | e %8°C8 .
%T 78 oS8
%6°98 %E'[8 %698
’ - i | | %888 %006
%S9°06 .
%1°C6 %E'16

- ' %9°'€6 —_—
%6 %IVE nose

%086

%0°86

%0°00T



MOUS ON B suonej@aue) Jaquiny m sdiy) psigjdwo)lm  sduy panpayos m
§57 £€T 65T ore L1T 44 otE 18¢ 80€ 99¢ 6LY S0€
059 508 8E9 0Z9 9 149 859 78S 0£9 LS 519 £T9
9T¥L €198 8499 TviL 1604 £499 1652 £90L LELY LY89 79S¢ %549
9908 2116 TETL 198 SELL YIEL 678 9Z6L 5492 S84/ 9598 989.
6T-unf 6T-AeN 6T-1dv 6T-12IN 6T-G24 61-uer 81-23Q 8T-AON 81-120 8T-dag 81-3ny gT-Inr
6T-unf 61-Aen ET-ady 6T-1eN 6T1-994 6T-uer 81-23Q 8T-NON 8T-1°0 gr-dag 81-8ny 8T-Inf
o] TR [R5 T [ [ ] ] () [ | | e
S0 6L 99¢ 80 8 ot [43 L1 oy 65 g€ 55
1z gy (44 o€ 28 85 1L b 0z 8¢ ag 0s
vSL [v8 LEL €V 849
€90 160
zoc YISL T€2L 9T
989L s8LL sLoL L SELL  ThL
9zZ6L
6028 9908
T9€8
9598 €19

8T16

MOYyS ON

SUOIIE||20URD JBGINN =

sdu) paie|dwon m
sdig pajnpayss m

000T

0002

000t

000%

000s

0009

000£

0008

0006

0000T



BT-Unr 6T-AeI 6T-4dY GT-IBN 6T-024 GT-UBT 8T-320 8T-NON §T-10 §1-das gT-8ny gI-|nf

gT-unf

61BN

SJBYI|@3YM 810

6T-uer

81-92@

eLvL

S19p1Y (301 m

BI-AON

14174

0T
11
Slied peoy #
8T-10 8T-das

06v8

LIEL

81-8ny

1526

6T-unr gT-AeN 6T-4dy GL-~IEIN 61-994 GT-UB[ 8§T-090 §T-AON 8T-390 81-daS g1-8ny 8T-Inf

8T-inr

6L6L

0

0t

4

000T
000Z
000€
000%
0oos
0009
0004
0008
0006

0000T



CATS

CARITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

CATS CAPITAL ASSET POLICY
POLICY NUMBER

Issue Date:
Effective Date:
Revised Date(s):
Approved by:

. Purpose and Scope

This policy is intended to provide guidelines to assist in the management controls of
CATS capital assets.

Il. Policy Statements

Capital assets include: land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements,
construction in progress, machinery and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and other
assets as defined by Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.

Assets, except for items used for direct repair of revenue vehicles, with a cost of $5,000
or more per unit and a useful life of at least one year will be capitalized. Other assets
costing less than $ 5,000 with a useful life of at least one year will be placed in a non-
capital asset account and depreciated within the life expectancy of the asset.

The capitalization threshold shall apply to single items rather than to groups of similar
items.

Leased equipment that is presented with the option to purchase must be added to
capital assets at the inception of the lease.

Depreciation of assets is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of the asset.

All CATS capital assets must meet applicable federal and state reporting requirements.

2250 Florida Blvd., Baton Rouge, LA 70802
news@brcats.com ‘ .
(225) 389-8920 Conmedvind w,j"t‘r b Y0 wit

“’ A ll‘L (&




CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Capital assets to be disposed must first be declared as surplus by a resolution of the
Board of Commissioners. Once this process is completed, CATS will be able to utilize
the services of the city, the state or a hired contractor to auction off these assets, in
accordance with Louisiana law. In certain instances CATS will get legal authority to sell
items declared as surplus materials, donate surplus items to the needy, etc.

lll. Ownership

CATS Finance Department is the owner of this policy.

2250 Florida Blvd., Baton Rouge, LA 70802
news@brcats.com ; . ,
(225) 389-8920 Conned {i;-,u:. (o T8 wihat matHes)

/

=il | ST SR S R S —



CRPITAL AREA TRENST SYSTEM
Connecling you to what matfers.

MEMORANDUM July 3, 2019

To: William “Bill” Deville, CEO
Darrell Brown, CAO

From: Lisa M Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager
James Godwin, Maintenance Director and Project Manager

Subject: CATS Procurement Process and Bid Review Summary
Recommendation for an Award of Contract
ITB Solicitation #2019-BusWasher-008

Purpose:
The purpose of this Procurement Summary is to document the procurement process and to recommend

an award of a contract for the referenced Bus Washers.

Background:
The purpose of the ITB is to secure a contract for a firm to handle the removal of 2 existing bus washers

and replace them with 2 new bus washers as described in the referenced ITB. The Procurement
Department deemed the nature of the project to be construction and prepared the ITB consistent with
that determination. The proposed price includes the bus washers, two extra blowers for each bus washer
and installation.

Procurement Process:

The solicitation was advertised in The Advocate (official journal) and in the Weekly Press (DBE
Publication) on May 2, 8 and 14, 2019. The ITB notification was also emailed directly to 18 contractors,
including 2 DBE firms. A Pre-bid conference and site visit were held for the attending vendors on May 9,
2019 at 10:00am. During the open inquiry period, CATS received 8 questions, which were answered via
an Addendum to the ITB on May 22, 2019. After that deadline, CATS Procurement Department received
more questions, and although the inquiry period ended, CATS found the questions to be valid and were
based on the previous responses from CATS, so vendors were afforded a 2" and Final Inquiry period.
Accordingly, CATS extended the Bid Due Date to June 19, 2019, with questions to be received by
Procurement by June 5". CATS received 11 more questions during the extended period. CATS
responses were delivered via Addendum on June 11", On June 19, 2019 CATS Procurement
Department received three (3) bids in response to the ITB from the following firms: (1) Tillage
Construction, LLC (total bid amount: $589,000), (2) The Luster Group (total bid amount: $680,000),
and (3) Westmatic Corp. (total bid amount: $682,880).

Bids Received and Reviewed:

CATS Procurement Department staff conducted a compliance review and found the apparent low bid
responsive to the requirements of the ITB. Based on the presence of ample competition, the
Independent Cost Estimate and other known factors, the bid amount was determined to be fair and
reasonable.

Contract Award Recommendation:
CATS Procurement and the Project Manager recommend awarding this contract to the lowest responsive
and responsible bidder, Tillage Construction, LLC, for $589,000, which is within the CATS current

budget amount for this project.

Note: If award is approved, CATS Procurement will issue the Purchase Order (contract) to Tillage Construction, LLC. The contractor wilf
prepare the necessary materials and will ptan to begin work and they stated on their bid that delivery and installation should be completed within
60 days after receipt of order. Dales also depend on time taken by Contractor to obtain an acceptable Performance Bond and a Cerlificate of
Recordation from the EBR Clerk of Court, per ITB.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

Lisa M Sanchez, CPPB

brcats.com

CHTS

CAPITRL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

July 3, 2019

MEMORANDUM
To: William “Bill” Deville, CEO

From: Lisa M Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager
Darrell Brown, Chief Administrative Officer

Subject: Recommendation to approve Amendment of existing
Contract for Audit Services awarded to Postlethwaite &
Netterville (P&N) on November 15, 2018

The Procurement Department recommends an Amendment to the above
referenced External Audit Services Contract to reflect the addition of
essential services that were not known until P&N was actually engaged and
commenced performance of the CYE 2018 Audit. Because of employee
turnover, manpower shortages, time constraints, recent IT system changes and
other reasons, additional auditing work was required. Given the importance of
the project, it was deemed expedient for CATS to enable P&N to do what was
necessary and appropriate by providing the additional services. The specific
additional services and related costs are itemized in Exhibit A, which is
attached. The initial contract amount for a 3 year period is $97,000.00. The
cost to CATS for the additional services performed by P&N is $119,500.

The initial contract prices are reflected in the following schedule:

CYE CATS CATS - Pension Plan | Approximate Total
Amount Annually
2018 | $31,500 $16,000 $47,500
2019 | $32,000 $17,000 $49,000
2020 | $33,500 $18,000 $51,500
TOTALS | $97,000 $51,000 $148,000 (3-year
Total)

P&N has performed the additional services as stated in their Engagement
Letter dated 3/31/2019 (see Exhibit A), and now requests remittance of the
additional charges for CYE 2018 of $119,500. CATS Management takes no
exception to P&N's request. With proper approval, the Contract total for CATS
share of the audit work performed will be increased by $119,500, bringing the
final price for CYE 2018 related work to $151,000.




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

CATS Management accepts the addition services performed and recommends
that a Contract amendment be approved by the CATS Board of Commissioners
accordingly.

The following Schedule assumes approval

of the proposed Contract

Amendment:
CYE CATS - initial CATS - Additional | Approximate Total
Services Amount Annually
2018 | $31,500 $119,500 $151,000
2019 | $32,000 N/A $ 32,000
2020 | $33,500 N/A $ 33,500
TOTALS | $97,000 $216,500

Based on the above, both the F&E Committee and the full Board are asked to
approve Amendment of the P&N Contract consistent herewith.




8550 United Plaza Blvd , Ste 1001 - Balon Rouge, LA 70809
2265-022-4600 Phone 225-922-4611 Fax - pncpacom

Postlethwaite & Netterville P e T S
A Professiongl Acg dunting Corporation

EXHIBIT A
Engagement Letter Change Order Form
Name of Client: Capital Area Transit System Period Ended: 12/31/2018
Proposed by: Postlethwaite & Netterville, APAC Date Prepared: 3/31/2019

At this time, we anticipate having to perform the following services in addition to those agreed to in our
original engagement letter dated December 13, 2018, in order to complete the audit of the financial
statements for Capital Area Transit System (the System):

Reason for requiring the change order:

There are additional services required to assist management in the completion of the audit for the year
ended December 31, 2018 financial statements that were not originally requested in the request for
proposal of audit services by the System.

Nature of work to be performed and/or additional costs anticipated:

1. Responding to the System’s questions and providing advice as part of the attest services provided
and attendance at System Committee meetings.

2. Additional costs incurred resulting from a lack of client responsiveness and timeliness of
information provided as support for transactions.

3. We will perform the following non-attest services:

Assist management with the preparation of financial statements and related note disclosures
Preparation of required supplemental information
Preparation of the schedule of expenditure of federal awards and related notes

Propose standard, adjusting, or correcting entries or other changes affecting the financial
statements for managements review, understanding and approval

Certain account reconciliations that identifies reconciling items for the System’s evaluation
including the following:

¢ Reconciling of 13 bank accounts for all twelve months

e Compensated absences, self-insurance and legal contingencies
o  Grant revenues

e Payroll liabilities

e Inventory

e Reconciling pension plan participants on payment plans

e Fixed asset listing



DP&N

Postlethwaite & Netterville

You agree to provide us with all support, documentation, and information that we deem necessary to
perform the above services in a timely manner. Failure to receive such support in a timely manner could
negatively impact our ability to fulfill the scope requirements described above within the agreed-upon

timeframe.

You will be required to acknowledge in the representation letter our assistance with preparation of the
financial statements, required supplementary information, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and
have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you are required to designate an individual with suitable
skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee any non-audit (attest) services we provide and for evaluating

the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them.

Revision of timetable:

We expect to issue our report no later than May 31, 2019.

Estimated cost of change/ additional work:
Total additional costs: §119,500
Costs are broken down as follows:
Bank account reconciliations
Financial statement preparation
and other supplementary schedules
Meeting attendance
Grant revenue reconciliation
Payroll related liabilities
Pension payment plans for employees
Compensated absences, legal claims

All other services provided

You will be billed for the actual time expended on the services at our standard hourly rates. The terms and

$ 20,850

33,500
7,500
9,100
6,500
6,000
8,000

_ 238,050
$119,500

conditions of payment will be the same as in our original engagement letter.

Approved by Firm:

ottt Mool

Postlethwaite & Netterville

Accepted:

Client:

Date: March 31, 2019



sliszbol |2sese'es  |zzazbicls |oveisiias  (vev'el 15522 50551 |ieroL

6LGTP0LLS b

cc.ow _.mm.v 2IAIDS ON | 2TIAIDS ON| 23IAlSS 9a3l]] 2DIAI9S ON| @DiAleS ON va,_\ uiel ] mm—. 1 211nys E.mm._ms__._b uwyinosg age
9g79/8'LS  |E18F S0IAI9S ON| 991AI9S ON|9E'9/8°L$ 821A49S ON| 22IAI9S ON |(£18'Y sdojs papwi] paid epuold| gL
Fe8r0’cs  |96S°F 882123 89 1¥ES LO'B37'ES LZE £65 9/9'¢ fjeq | AYISISAIUN WIBynog / [euwis] S1VD| 0L
T6'52h$ GT0'L G5'8TS S¥ees T6¥.IE% oG 6. £63 1ojenoal) [eslpal| 09
86'8ee'c$ |L£1L'G 66°L2E% o 1L0vS £5°G19'73 LIS 98. 008'e Jeusyap f ug [BSN,O / PAIE BPLIO|d 3SBT] 65
£9°65£'7¢  [S81'F 891A198 ON [G+'80CS 81°1502% 921A18S ON|2GG £E0'E JsusydQ / U [2eN,O  pajg Aesunod|  gg
ge'189'01%  |88¢'Gl 0.°6+6% 02 0gl' 1S |S27109'8% 179 768°) 688°LL uq uabalsg f py sBunds [lamusaln | pAlg 1S3104 poomIayg| J§
69°900°9%  [g8.1'B OF L6+$ 99°/69% £9/18'vS$ zel YT 908° L Aisianun weynos f Hodily onaj [ YioN AMH sulliy | p§
S6°L6LLLS  (LAbEE 91'691'1$ |szzls'ts [15025'8% 1822 1z2'¢ £L0°LL ns1/py pueubiH| v
09°20'¢$  |L9FL £0°65F% 9°£85% £6'GAB'CS a3 290°1 2595 sBisqne T [ a1splen f euepon|  gf
9g7lec'vid  |obsiog leezy e |eL'0s0'zs  [ekeye’ols  [ool'e £56'Y Le¥'ze palg epuold|  vb
§Z'2/1°01% |9spel G2'ores 2LvYor' LS |eg9es2$ 02471 ¥L0'e TIGEL paueld| ¥
L1°189°¢$  |ev0‘e LZ6PES [N ¥1L'650°CS 09 66% %6 g eysod| €7
[3°660°Y$S  |9¥0°Z YePIPS LLL2PS Z6'E51°cS ¥56 ] A SAY SWinoqUIpY, 22
£8°820%%  |¥912 1677653 S1'06Y3 LA PEL'CS 662 G80°L 082S oAy sppeuaed|  LZ
86'ce¥’ss  |08Z°6 £o'8crs 09'685% 55°6OF'+S 6.8 L¥Q°L 0ge’s Amy[ ueipesy ypoN|  0F
zo'99s'v$ 2192 #0CEES 6272093 6.71E8°cS €5 ¥LO'L G90'9 I[elW eueHoD f puelebil| gl
80°68¢'s$  |Ivi'0L £/c8e% 0F 1LGG5% G6'ESY' TS 862 ¥ELL G5.'8 pd subpad| 2L
co.cw v AIIAIES ON| 9JIAI9S ON| 97IAlSS mw.nn_ wu_?_wm ON| SJIAIDS ON| LT aPnUsg yied _DH—MQNU gl
€€266°1% 118 LB'EOLS 06°282% 25°68%' L3 842 286 1202 YHOMIS3ID | Py JuUno|g f SYeQ u3S| Gl
6£0L8'ZS |PLL'Y G ZoL% 78 L6€% 08°652'¢$ 98z 699 8GL'C 1S Yenesooy /4 udlea sewoyl| vl
€0ZIZ'ES {512 28GLzS 91'LLGS 86523 abG fraa TF6's AmH uosiayar [3g JuswuIBA0D);  Zl
66°29€'7T$  [gzv¥'c £6'182% G0°gees LO'ELg LS 0zZg 06G gLg'e S|IIAPUBJODS  SAY PUZ/ f I0JEJNDIID SPISYHON| L]
LL'698°73  |Z29's 0£'102% LL'00E$ 02'19¢'2$ 86¢ 9c9 685’y IIIAPUEROIS [ AISISAIUN WIBLINOS | AMH 21u228| 0}
98¢0z 1S 29T L0ZLLS 59'902% 07'988% BYE £9g 0E6°L ooud /eay Bunojp sno| g

INNIATY |diysteprd | Aepung | Aepinjeg | Aepyjoap Aepung | Aepames | Aepyasm alEN 9IN0Y rquny
ajnoy
V1ol INNIATY diHSy3a

AYQ H0 IdAL Ad F1N0Y d3d INNIAIY ANV dIHSHIAR d3aU0I3y FHVANID 6102 INAF




0 G 0 f) 0 skeq Aouablawg
2t ¥ G |4 G sABpung j0 1aquiny
0z 3 ) v G sfepimeg Jo l2qQunN

8 34 0z 0g Lz sAepyaap JO Jaquuny

[z unp Aepy 1dy Jely qa4 uep

|rovzieL |ssi'sze [¥19'eve | v¥z's0E I£g'eEe {sB9'zoE |oze'sye Sd¥L IMNIINN TYLOL
/9g 4 4] 0 1] oLl FATA ( 6LOZ/ST/Z0 92iniaS papuD) SsoddxgumoumogHeding|  £0F
925'91 1971 208 SFS'C £39'E 0Z0's £95'C aInys AIsisaiup uiayno 08
0z/'1E eLa'y Stl'g 60¢'S 256'% 795'G 1E0'G sdojg papwi] palg epuold Tl
EL6'5Z 965F% 102y 105"t 6EC ¥ 501'% BSL'Y Jaxeg [ AISISAIUN WBLENOS [ [BUlWR]) S1VD 0L
8eL's 5Z0°L £9z') Z06 110 Stl 95/ 1o3e[nauD [eaipsy 09
12208 LEL'S 0ie's 980°g zLg's 088'Y 965°F ABUSYIQ /U [BIN.Q / PAIE BpliG]] 3sBY 65
La0°8e agl'y e0e's 00E'F 00L'v 6997 106"y Isusysg f u7 [e3N,0 7 PAIR AosInod 85
Ivi'es 592°GL ZlZ'st ¥6C'Sk ivL'Sh 09z'cl arr'el Py sbuudg ||amusals) | pAjg 152104 PoomIsys s
S5¥'0L 0 ¢ 0 0 56v°F 088's ( 6102/52/20 9910435 POPUS) PAE-BFEL T BHISBICHHEI-OT He| 9%
£0e's 0 o 0 c [ ara 1482 ( 6L0zZ/EZ/T0 DUIAIBS popuRd) DRUG AT FRMGEPHOISE| 9
Z95'59 58/'6 £65°01 851'01 108°CL 340'CL 000°T1 yodiiy one / AISI9AIUR WISYINOS [ YUON AMH sulupy ¥S
012 0 0 0 0 88c'} gL' L ( 610Z/82/20 9oinios papus) Joretanaoneg| <8
aUr'y 0 0 0 0 £90' gLr'e { 6102/£2/20 891A19S papus) 4ojetRoHg e Hain| 6%
¥ISTHL Li¥'eE 965'2¢ 6/6°LT 6Vv've 861%Z 129'sZ ns1 7 py pueybiH ¥
12182 1e¥'/ 2bT'1 gL't S08'9 0 0 { 8L02/¥2/20 o91ras nebag ) obiagne,n  aloples | eueHon oy
1590} 0 0 0 0 892's £3g's { 6L02/62/Z0 D2iAI0S papus) obpane 070 fesepien) S
500'/81 orsoe 606'1€ 06108 ¥86'08 gle'ee 686602 PAIg BPHOLY P24
ErL'BLL g57'81 515'02 58/1'81 96£°02 anz'le 52¥'02 Py ueld 2
69.'%2 E¥0'9 ¥er's 69.°G L59°G 661G 20L'S 1q fe1s04 x4
0242y gr0’L 905'2 VLG 208'9 2004 930'9 oay sulnoquipt|  ZZ
FL1LOF ¥oL'L 069'/ 815’9 £29'9 2529 i2l's BAY SpleiMIES 1z
z31'69 08¢'6 8056 0/8'8 LAL'OL 00L'04 £65°0 Amy ) uelpedy YHON 0z
obt'vy zLe'L GE9'L 1879 €9z’ G68'L ¥8L'L e BUBNOD f puenabll gk
Lse'/a Iri'al ZEL'TI ZeF'QL TLLLL 5L5'0L 5%6°L L Py sunod Ll
£0€ [ £z 9 £8 i £l Asli01] Hied jopded 91
£26'Z) IE8T 9cs’e G20 £50°2 zav 0 { 6L02/re/70 99IA0S tieboq) YLOMISI] | Py JUnolg 5L
865'67 FLL'Y #35°G LELG 2l7's gee'y £og'¥y 1S HoAas00Y / JQ Hd|eQ SEWOUL | ¥
¥i5LS SLLL ane’s 931'g 1188 180'6 695’6 Amit Hosisyer /3§ JUslIUIBAOD zZL
Zav'ee 8TV’ gel'e ¥Re's B20'Y 681'F riL'y B[|IADUBIODS [ 8AY PUZL [ 1032|N3I1D SPISYHON L
EEFEY 229's 08¥°L £9V' L g16’L 1987 £90°, Apsi1aalun weynos [ Amy 21usosg ok
£6F AL Zr9e 600’ 559 L6L'E 100°C &6’ D04 [ 2ay Bunoj shg 2

|sszizvs  |ezi've | 28682 [265°101 | esc'ozr  Jezs'ipl | B {usuelt 1514 Ag pejesedo) spedp 498 ] ng1 |

o) aunp Aew dy yaue Aenige4 Aenuer JNVYN 3LNOH| y3gNnNN
J1noy

syre1) 19b11 Ng7 Bulpn|ou] 61.6Z INNP 10} ALA 8INCYH




SL'6G1 $ (251 - $ |0 {6L0Z/c2/20 93IAias papus) ssaldxg umolumoq [ Hodary| €0
B0IAIDS 991 cl6 soiues sald [1.82°1 aynys Aislsalun wayinog| 08
6¥°169°L $ {002'S 9£'9.8°1 ¢ |ci8'v sdojg pajiwl pAjg epliold| 22
€9C6L'C $|clL'e 7E8Y0'C $ {965V Jaxeg [ AjisiaAluf) WLaYIN0S / JeuluLd] SI1VI| 0
¥Z€0¥ $ |64 Z6'Gey $ |sc0'L Joje|ndli) [eJIPOIN| 09
GE0.¥'E $ |862v 86°8EE'¢ $1.€1'G PUsyoQ [ U7 |ESN.O f PAI BPHOld )SBT| 65
06'990°'¢ $|L06'% €9°65E'C $|981L'F J2USYDQ / U [82N.O / PAlIg Aesinog| g5
760866 $ |809'F1 GE'189°01 $ (88e'sL Py sbunidg ||amuaalg | pAlg 1S8104 poomusys| [§
628212 $|el6'e 0 (610Z/c2/20 @2iAtas papua) pAIg Ble] j uT e[lIsniq [ [IBIN O3 lelN| 95
1T LS6°1 $ |L28C 0 (6102/c2/20 901n19s popud) DIud AS / PAIE EPUO[] Ised]| S5
06°C.6'v $ |96¢8 699009 $|s8Ll'6 yodiry ons / AHSIDAIUN WIBYINOSG [ YHON AMH sulpiy|  +6
£9'9/8 $(1EL'L 0 0 (61L0zZ/52/20 oo1nios popuo) 10BN 19Meg| Z6
769311 $i€L8'1L 0 0 {6L0Z/£2/20 @2iAm@S popud) IojeInadl) SHeQ ud|9| 0§
L0°6¥E'Cl $ 112542 G661 L1 $|1Lv'ee NS71/PY puelybiH| ¥
- g 10 09°8€0'S $LO¥' L (61L0Z/PE/Z0 oo1atas uebaq) abiagne, f 21apJen) [ euellon| oF
AR 2T $ [s9v'G 0 0 (610Z/ce/z0 0oint0s popuo) @Biaqne, 7/ 1070 f 91epien| oF
Ly 2SSl $ (LLL¥E 99 /€E'¥L $ |0¥5°0E PAIG epUIOld| T
66'880°L L $ [29l'le TV VAN ]! $ |9srelL pdueld) Ly
LL0BL°C $ |geey 21°189°¢ $ |ev0'9 ilq Jeysodl ¢z
11°G/9°¢ $ 18929 L2660V $ |ov0°L 9AY JWInoquipn| Z2Z
6€°1L0°E $ |661°G £9820'v $ [¥oL'L SAY SpdlMie]l 12
£1°999'% $|16°L 86°C6Y'G $ |08C'6 AMmyL uelpedy YHON| 02
€8GLL'Y ¢ |c6T'L 2999/ $|2L9'2 llelN eUEMIOD / puelRbIL| gL
09'600°9 L [eTARrA 8068¢°S $ [LvL0L Pd subjied; L
90IAI9S 9314 0 o01MSs 9914 |1y Asjjoa] Waed joudes| gL
- $ |0 €€ /6L $1/€9¢ (610Z/¥2/20 9o1ni0s uebaq) ypomysald [ py unojg| Gl
GG Lor'e $ |962'¥ 6E0L8°C $|FIL'Y 1S HeAds00y /1 Ndjeg sewoy)| i
G6'¥92°C $ b2zT'g €0gle'e $|G61L°L AMH UOSIayar [} JUSWUIAACD|  Z)
vlL'gele $1/66°¢ 66'28€°C $ |gey'e S[IIAPUBODG [ BAY PUZ. [ I0JEINDIG SPISYUON| L]
£9'€87'¢ $ {6059 117698°C $ 1229 Aps1zAlun uldyInog ; Amy ousogi o)
1€°0/6°1 $|2lge 9802’1 $ [2v9e 00ug /9AY Bunoj sno! g
JNNIATY dIHSH3aMN INNIATY dIHSH3AIY S3LNOY| #
8L0e 610¢

610¢ INMI OL NSOIYVdINOD 6102 ANNT




JUNE 2019 Route Revenue and Ridership Totals

 Route

Number [Route Name RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
8 Gus Young Ave / BRCC 2,642| $ 1,204.86
10  |Scenic Hwy / Southern University 5622|$  2,869.11
11 Northside Circulator / 72nd Ave / Scotlandville 3,428| $ J 2,382.99
12 Government St/ Jefferson Hwy 7,715| $ 3,272.03
14 Thomas Delpit Dr / Roosevelt St 4,714 $ 2,810.39
15 Blount Rd / Crestworth 2,837| $ 1,937.33
16 Capitol Park Trolley 41| Free service
17 |Perkins Rd 10,747|$ _ 5,389.08
18  |Tigerland / Cortana Mall 7.612|$  4,766.62
20  |North Acadian Thwy 9,280[ $  5,493.98
21 Fairfields Ave 7,164 $  4,028.83
22 Winbourne Ave 7,064] $ 4,099.87
23 |Foster Dr 6,043/ §  3,681.17
41 Plank Rd 18,456] $ 10,177.25
44 |Florida Blvd 30,540/ $  14,337.86
46 |Cortana/ Gardere / L'auberge 7,461| $ 5,038.60
47 |Highland Rd / LSU 23,4711 $ 11,197.95
54 |Airline Hwy North / Southern University / Metro Airport 9,785] $ 6,006.69
57 Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 15,388} $ 10,861.35
58 |Coursey Blvd / O'Neal Ln / Ochsner 4185|%  2,359.63
59 |East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln / Ochsner 5137|$  3,338.98
60 |Medical Circulator 1,025] $ 425.92
70 CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 4,596| $ 3,048.34
72 |Florida Blvd Limited Stops 4,813|$ 1,876.36
80 Southern University Shuttle / Jag Train 1,281| Free service

RIDERSHIP REVENUE
Total| = 201,047

§/110,605.19




8LIEL/LL SaoInIes
‘suondo [emaual Jeak-auo panosddy 1pny [euispg
Z Uim ‘pzoz ubnowy gLoz uwi Bulpus siea, JepusjeD Jo4 pseog “Ainp 000°LSLS = uoisuad
"8L/0€/01 U0 pauado d4y pieog |} 0} Ao o} pancidde 8L/ILEZL urpos'6l s (8L0Z 3AD 0 S1VD
a8jlWwo) 334 — 8L/8/LL Panoidde pieog - BLIEL/LL buipua Joe1ju0d Bulsixa 40 aseaiul S1vD 10} joRNUOD S9OIAISS
‘000°LS1LS 4O [BJO3 MaU Joj 00S'LES IBelUl 0 8LOZ FAD ue soe|dal 0} Se2INIBS anoidde 00S'6LLS ajjinlanap 2 saolAleg ®
S1VD 10} 005'6L L$ [euonippe anoidde o} pieog — 61/9L/L IpNY |BuB)x3 o) 44y 0} pJeog 1Z0Z 220 | 6L0g uer ppPY) ajemuylafisod dd upny
Siepy diog @ '[| JUSWSINa0kd
‘suogjeradp  ‘BuisipsApy g Bugayiep  ‘Woddng
uiLpy  [elausg ‘soueul{ se yans 'SLVD o} seomas
BpNjaul 0} SAINIBS GLEL/Z BNSEM SIvD Ue pajsod
PUE paINquUISIP D4y — 61/8/2 "S9IIAISS [|E-LI0 Yy UOU J0) J
dd anssial 0) S\ "Pa||asued st DY — 6LFLIE BL/OLIS ms._”mo.ﬁwm__mo
uo anp sjesodold "wdz je 61/L 1/ UO PjaY 39 0} 22UBIBJUOD . e
|esodoid-aic| “sa2IAIBS |[EQ-UD 10} PANRIIOS d-fH — 61/8Z/E ~_6L0Z/8EZ/E d4¥ S92IA188
"pauado Ajignd sjesodold — L/9L/5 “Sidoed N0 puey | U0 SPIIAIDS ||ED-LO TRV asi i
% sseo0id SSNISIP 0} DI UIM 191U JUBLWIBINA0I = L/Z/L | -UOU IO} df¥ PANSS| SIVD agl agl aal 1509 xouddy asit Bunnsuesy lleQ-uQ
*0]8 ‘saulyoew
12301} pue sysoB 'spiejog Asjes ‘Bunyby ‘sejoeidasal
ysen ‘syoel ayiq ‘samyioe) sabusssed pesoous ‘abunoj )
sdanup ‘sainjonis Adoueo ‘sAeq Bupped sng aines) Luommmmﬁww_mz
0] "sU0 SI JBJUSD HSUBI] HEN SJOUM 'SISjUad Jajsuel) 13)UaD) JIsuel | sa5iA0g mwu_?_mw
sng Jofew 4 jo ssuss e Jo juswdojorap sy} ayepapun o) | aBnoy uojeg yuoN ay) 1o} agl ublsaq :
uul4 Juswabeuepy S1y0 Jad awl siy} Je ploy ug — gL/LY | Sedwas ubisaq Joj DY agl ag.L gl 1500 x0iddy asgl Ekad ubisag 38V
‘suoneayoads [eaiuyoa) ay) Bunssw ul Jappig aaisuodsal 500
1samo| 8y} Buiuusiep ul SpIg  UOHINIISUOD Byl Upm -uBisagsanusuwy
SLYD Isisse osje |m jueynsuod ubisaq ‘me ‘sadeaspueT -6L0Z D4y
‘SYsol ‘sIS)AYS epnjoul M CBL/LLF UD WEQD:DL 1B a.:uwwwmm L
anp sjesodold "pajialos sem DJY — 6L/8Z/E '000°08LS Jo} Aep ui premy Samitioury ysuss|
Bunssw pieog L0z auUNp 2y} 1B PIEME UB PUSWILLIODSI pUB juawdinb3 pajelay joRIUOD a4njoaiyaly sedinIeg .m.wo_?.w
siesodoid pajenieas D3d pue ‘Juswaindold Aq paaieoal | pue saRusWy ISUBL) 10y panosddy 000'081% adeospueT] ubisaq : S
2iom sjesodoid — 6LILL/F parcidde pieog - L/SLIS | S201M8S ubBisag oy DY pieog asl agl 150D x0iddy yaiey I8V ubisag 339Y
‘81/62/8 :@1eq Buiuad( |esodoid "alisgem S./# dd "pPAlg
S1vO ue pajsed ‘)si| Jopuaa 0] Juas uoneoynocu pue Bld @ Py queld
pasiuaApe sl D44 MaN — 81/z/g "BuloBuo |is suonenjeag — SSNIIoR) JiSuel Mau (ow g1) {ow g1) suonels 1yg
8L/OL/OL "BrS WY S5 ¥G'ZZES 4O JUNOWE BU) Ul 1340 [euy | apnjoul O} "PAlg Bl 8 PY BLIEL/L L aaL gl Sa010I8S S99IAI9G
PaAal S1VD — 81/§2/04 "PieOg |In} 0} 2A0W 0} panoidde | xueld uo suolelS [ Mg Jo) panoiddy ‘8jeg ‘aleg 000'€ZES 11 uBlsaq i
OPWWOD IFp4 — 8L/8/LL penrcudde preog - gL/gL/LL | seomas ubisaq Joy DAY pieog pajewns3 | pajewnsg | 3so0p xouddy | ‘dnodo grs J9v ubisaqg 39V
a
02/62/Z Ny3 |lemaual
9L/LL/g WBAUOD | Bupyass (swiers dwog E,wmmw__.m_,m:m Ly
J0 |emauas panoidde pieog SIVD — 9L/I0L/3 "PeZIEUY | SIBMIOM pue Aujger] 1esid wiery h.mum:__u( woj ISyIoM
|emaual J9BNUOD — 9L/6/6 ‘[BMBUBI YUOW 9 B aq | ‘suoyebisast) 'Saouss 02/62/2 oﬂmw\w%_”“w e - » Aupgen
I joeNUOD S ‘1aBeuepy joslold Jad — £1/1Z/L "pancidde wiep) Jojsnipy 4oy yBnouiyy m_wu._w,cmh 1oy m@ } 19214 sng
384 = 21/0L/8 - panoiddy pieog — /L/GL/8 ‘pancidde joBAUOD 1ead g [euiBuo) lemausy E it uswabeuely swie|n
324 - 8L/5L/E "parcsdde pieog — gL/0zZ/ "Jesh sUo oy | BL/8Z/Z — 8L/L/E O pouad panoiddy BLILIE patepdn swie|p e = [
panss| J9BNUOD MAN — 81/L/¢ "peacidde pieog - GLIGL/L | [emaual paroiddy pieog pieog 0Z/62/Z Jemausy o} Jojay umoug a0 i3)1snipy
. Y
_ awe adA uoldiiosa
SJUBLILIOY | SBJON papiroid panoiddy ajeq ajeq iy N L nduoseq
19NpPOoId [S92IAIDG pieog pug MBS JOpUap uon CRITVETS
syjuouwl ¢ 0] | ulyiim uonay pieog Buipuad sissloid = anjg _ mou [eaoiddy pieog spaau [ Wway| UOIIIY = MO][BA _ 6L0Z ‘9L Ainp

pleog S1yD 40j bunsi juswaindoid S1V9




“SUB|d Juswisanu|
juswanoidwy |enden

pue 21631eAS S0 Ul peulap
se saAlpalqo pue sjeob
‘SUoHEPUIWWCIaL Juawa|du

01 41 SARNDDXS puB juawesbeuey
03D Ui om pue ‘sjepipues
paijenb e ypum Aouesea d0lueg S1VD
039 findag SLvD Buly yum 2616102 0} J0SIAPY
1sisse 'safnp aoueuUUIEW
pue Bunesado Aep-oj-Aep Od joenuay m:O_um._wQO
Jowawabeuew pue ybisiano Mm_”._._u\“.w avN) o1 d01ueg @
sse ‘uond I
‘'salpsnpu| 8By maN folote) %M..«.M_o umm”w%o_wwww_u;n«u_w panocidde ‘sauysnpuj soineg 030 findag
Yim 10B1JUCO mau siy paaoidde pieog — 6L/1Z/S SLV0 IsissE 0} Jugynsuo) pleog BLILE/ZL BL/L/9 2by maN Jnsuop Bupoy
a
‘siaquisw D34 3y} Aq
pajoales se pajnyisu| 913 Buipuswiwodsal QI S1VD 0 ) [emaual auo yim
1a)j8| pleme 10j UONEPUBLLLLIODa ay) pasedald Juswainooly sle| maual 0y | g1Lz'ze$ pPE [EMaUDI 02l '89% 6L/0E/¥ S1 93P pul
8L/gLy  'gL0z ‘9L |udy uo jpenuoo | panoidde UOHEPUAWIWIO3aI 0D 0) | pue 19BNUOD JoRIUOD (6Loz w>0>._3m
pleog S1vD SpuUnj 2JOW 10} SYSE) [BUOIHIPPE UM [BMBUS) 1959y "SLE'C01$ JO 1509 |emaual 1eak auQ 16} [EMBUI ) uonoe
. Joejsiieg
anoidde pue mainal 0] Ig4 GL/LLIF "SYSEl Poppe Io) [0} pamaual B je Jeak anoidde 51Z'Z84 PEY) ansu| aoinag )
Junowe [eUOIIPPE/M [BMBAUS) psacidde pieog — 6LIGLY e 901} shenins pieog 0) pieog 0Z/0E/¥ 6LILIS SLE'EOLS 213 ynsuog dawoysny
mainay Jubisiang Joy 158'21%% MaIASY
20UBJSISSY MBINY-IS0d 1928102 Bisiang
‘Hoddng uonoy aAndaL0D | Od PBHUCD aAIsuayaldwon
‘[eAcidde 030 Jo) poysaIy} U} UILIM “S)SB] apnjaul 0} 6L0Z USHUM GGG V14 6L0ZA4)
SEM U2IUM ‘/G8'/¥$ 1O} BL/G/Z UO PaJNoaxs Sem Joenuod |eluual ] V14 Buiwosdn 6LILZIS Juauna o aouE)SISSY
[euiBUO "8L/OL/I8 "BYS'PPLS JO JUNOWE 10BNUOD [BJ0} B Jo uoteiedaid ypm panrocidde Z6v'96g ppy) | SOIEIDOSSY aoiniag .
10} Z6¥'96$ 40 spuny jeuoippe panosdde pieod — 6L/LE/S | SLVD ISISse 0} jueynsuo) pieog BL/LE/R 8LIvEIZL BYEPYLS ® Boaid nsuog | @Jueldwon
"12U00s Jo sAep (¢ IXau o uiLjim
1o spig ay) sney o} Buidoy aie ap) “spuny |eispad
Buisn ‘siaysem snqg z Joj ‘sye|dwoa jsowle ‘payelp
Buleq s| g11 — 6L/8/2 N0 puss pue szjeuy o}
1ualuainoold Joj pamaiasl Buieg g1 | 10 yelp [eul4 —
: : 5 '$AU0 M3U Ypm aoejdal
6l/zIy "wdg je 61/6T/S @ed Buuado pig "payoljos pue ﬂ_gcm_o aAsit
gLl — 6L/2IS ‘pamainal jusweinoold -Buluado 0} IOPUB “SIaUSEM 6L0Z/91/L 00Z1# Hd
Piq 1& peal Ajoiignd spig — 6L/6L/9 “AINr ul pig 1S8Mo] snq (z) om} 10} Spig anosddy uopoNISU0H siaysep sng
0} 000'68G$ 40 pieme anoidde 0} pieog — GL/9LIL | peIdlos SEY JUSWAINo0IY 0} pseog 000'599% 153 abeyiL =0 uoponnsuoy
‘6L0C "9 Yalep wdoQig
:8jeq anq pig Is!| JOpUBA O} pajiEWwS pue a}ISqem o} (BL/L2IE)
811 peisod S1v0 — 61/9/g 077 'dnosg Uoanasuod g
IS ~ 1SppIq 3semo| 0} pieme g Guipuatuuioos ZOD-NOHSUEI | BUBLOD-6L0Z 6LIET/6 au Jo Yok 2w el
SLPUE 2DIq € RaNS0BI SLY) 'Pausdo spig ~ GLI9/E gll—JeusD ysuell | 6L0Z/6L/E | ‘Od/dIN | souenss) 977 ‘dnoi iayuagy
panaiddy 324 = 6LIVLIE 'BL/LZ/S UO N0 JUsS Od BUBHOZ) JO UONONIISUOD anoiddy wouy 10 SHoem 0005258 uonINNISU0n lsuel] euBlOD
UM pesdold o} 8oijoN “pascldde pieog — GLIGLIE 10} g11 ‘GraFH 0} pieog shep 0g| £ UM | 3500 xauddy Ay gl uononisuoy
) 2
I ) =) uol
S)uBWIWOY / SBI0N papinodd panosddy Jeq 1eq Jwy awien adA] ondiaseg
19Npoid [S821A198 pieog pug uelg JOpUap 1juon ERTTVETS
Syjuouwi ¢ 0} | Ulypm uonoy paeog Buipusd syoaloid = anjg _ mou [eaocsddy pieog spaau [ Wa)| UOIIIY = MO[|BA _ 6L0Z ‘9L AInp

pleod S1v9 10} Bupsi juswiaindold S1VD




144d
PH Yuejd pue
110 euepo)
10} saijiuawy
‘suieunoy Bupjuup ‘spiejoq ‘sejoeidasal JISuBl |
ysely ‘suonels bBuibieyo ‘'sigueld ‘syoes oig se 189 mm.: ddn
Yons ‘saluawe Jays-aul-4o, apnjoul 0} mou payesp Buisg | py  jueld Ppue euepuoD 000'055% 1 S
g1l - 61/8/2 swabeuel S1vD Jad ploy uQ — 6L/LIF | 1o} sauswe jBys-ayi-io agl agl agl 1809 xo0.ddy agl a1l ? Slelsleil
W
6L02/6L1Z Uo ‘Aidde Eﬁnw.\hwhm%:ao
pieoq S1vO >n_ ﬁm.)O._Qnmd. 6L02/6L12 sajes Apnoy + ‘ so0InBeg :
Jeahyse| woy seBUBYD | penuog seomies g6 | panoaddy | zz/gLis | 6LBLIS | segseumey | O1dY UMId | SeAAISS
ON '1oBIUOD JBak-¢ mau paroidde pieog — 6LIGLIZ 1eak (g) aaiy) pieog (mau) (mau) Alysuop MeT aIpeqy Hnsuoy jeba
1
‘Rouaby ay)
Jo sjuawys!|dwooge ay)
‘S|EMBURI YJUOW-aAJaM] () INO) | 2SBIMoys pue ‘Aunwiod
0} dn Joj uondo aU} Yim ‘syUoW Z| 1o} 000'5Z1L$ Jo unowe ay) w pueuq aasod
8y} Ul 20 0] LUOHEPUSWILICOS) PJEME JOBIUOD UM '90USI0S | B ulejulew pue ping ‘sseq
{0y si wiy Bunooss 1saybiy (D3d) ssnuwoD uonenea] diysiepu S1vD aseasnul
[esodold 2y} Ag pejeneas siam  yoym  sjesodoud 03 suBisap pue saibajelns seIAIeS
G pani@tal SIVD 'ssald Apjeepn SUl pue  9]BO0ApY Bunaxiew -pur ‘sweiboid 8LI8LI6 aeak sod :
ay ul pasigaape pue suwuy ufiisap oiydesb zg 0] Juas sem Bunsyiew Bupnasxa pue paroiddy wnwixep UG ubisag
uonejolos 4y Uy - 81/2Z/L "parcaddy pleog — gL/gLi6 Bunesso ul §1vD 1sissy pieog 6L/0E/6 8L/LI0L 000'sZ1L$ o0y d4y olydeis
2]
"JOBIUOD [EMBUSY DBulpuswwoday Japa] 030 89S
"8L/LE/E MUY LL/L/v JO poliad |emausl oy jerolddy pleog
Spo8U JOBNUOD — LL/LZ/E T1OBAHU0D JO |emaus) parosdde
pieog = /[}/1Z/e PPeljuo) |[emausy Buipusuwiwooay suljoses)
ls)el 030 @8S CBL/LE/E MU 8L/ lo  pouad pug [ssald
lemaual Joj pasocsddy pieog — 21/0Z/¢ ‘douspuodsanon 120z Ny 10§ 1wenuo)d
lle uo paidod sem aseydind d-0 8yl pue odelysn4 a|geiene | vL/EL/g uo (6dd) ‘uoljepoljos
ywm paubis pue pazieuy SBMm JIBNUOD — 8L/9Z/E "USUEd s|emausal seijjeny | jeb ed soud ysied mENFm\.u_w
Ao Ag peacidde ‘oesjjend Aq joenuos paubisse sem ‘wayshs Buisuads|p oz/Lele leak auo 0} pieme = Xe] + 93} Ao ein Eswwgmwpw ¥
IO PRYSUBY 1By} UOYEDLNOU PBAlBdeY — 8L/E/0L “Pieog 1oy sy} ul ajedioled ny) [emeua) | gmauod | panodde | wpeggopg | (PBILIPN4Aq 5§ ot e
yosely o} o6 |ma siyl "S1vD Pauljou pue iesA suo o) 0] Ajjua ajesedas e Jeak auo ieakz jlounoyD + SIdO paubisse sem) m.hq_\on.w& 2 duor
pamaual sey ysued AlID — 61/8/2 ‘panciddy 394 — 6L/PLIE | Se uoneudios jeny yLoz W 1o} anouddy juaung ona d-90 Al2g oju| Ll usued Ang aujjoseo pue
N0 Juss 10eNUOD [emBuay ‘parcidde pieog — GLGLIE | SLVD Papnoul usiied AyD 0} pJeog 0ZILE/ED | wLILO/LL 291d 110 pleysuep Aq gy [@saig [end
1K 1ad ' = 1eak Jad i
LLISZ/Z U0 WINPUSPPY BIA JNO S95U0dSa hmr_mmmwwmmw%:wéma - e SEopos) | vage (sesng BiIo 01)
ano. uww 21/0z/z Aq 2sey enp seumbul “Zi/c M9eq | 008y 1z'pe 1500 [E10) 109 ubnoiLp aseyaing/
anp slesodold ‘suonnyisul |epueuy aidynw o} papodios ‘poued Jeak ; 1an0 Aeg -siesk jenden sieah £ o}
d4¥ = £1/g/z "$esng BIlID 01, 10} $1 Buioueuly “|erosdde Jo) “sesng Bio 01 LUZIE 1 10} S35Ng aiand Buneuy sl
P4EOQ |In} 0} BA0W 0} Wia) penoidde 394 - £L/9L/E "SBSNG | goueuiy eseyoing/asear] panaoadde j9s31q Bio EdlAWY 8 aJueulq sng
o 01 jo Bunueuy parcsdde pieog - LL/iziE sng [eyded pieog ¥202100 | 210z Mdy | QL soueuly jo oueg d4 Buroueuiy
4
SUSLILIOD | SOION pPapIAOid panroiddy aleq ajeq iy aweN adA uopdiuosaq
19Npoid [S92IAIS pleog pusg MRS 10puap nuon ERITVETS
syjuow ¢ o} | ulym uondy pieog buipuad syoafoid = an|g | mou [eAosddy pieog spaau [ Wa}j| UOHIY = MO||DA [ 610z ‘91 Ainp

pieog S1VvD 40} bunsiq juswainsoid S1VD




"610g-pit Buipieme plie sRep 0g-08 UIUIM 110 d -3 ay)

aney 0} Buidoy ale ap) “uopeLwoul JaLeb o) sjuawpedad weoe:ol
SLVD e tym Bupiiom Josnju| Jo syjuow Jaye ‘dd4u | Je 6L/EL/g @ng siesedold ddd
auy) bupjeip uo Joanu| yum Bupiom i JUSWRIND0IH S1YD AIBMUOS dHT 6L0Z ‘l1e4 alBMyos s hw du3
= 6L/8/Z 'BL/EL/Z BNQ IS|| JOPUBA O} JUSS UOHBIYHOU | — BIBMYOS SpIM-LLRISAS uj anoidde 2P
pUE B)sqam §1y/0 U0 pa)sod 'pasiLenpe Sl d-4x — 6L9Z/9 | 10} d-f¥ Ue panss! S1vD 0} paeog agl (af=1 aglL agl washg alemyog
“d-Y 2y} Jo sjuawannbal [e21uyDa) 8y} 188w papiwgns
sjesodoud auyy p Buuusisp ur Apealb (D3d) senwwos
uonenjena |esodoud SivoD diBy M 2suesisse  siY|
‘oW aje suawalnbal pue spasu uonedyads [RIIULDD) wajsAs
PUB AMAOS S1VD 2Insus 0} panaiadal sjesodoud auj Jo mainal alemyos juswdojansqg
[e1Uy28) 3yl Ul sjuswpedaq JUSWaIND0I] PUB 1] SIVD |  2L/9L/¢ panoidde g dy3 Jo . uopesyioadg
1sIsse 0s|e [IM ABU | "d-¥ UB 10} UOIN|OS [E2IUYDR) IBM]OS SLLZI8 pieme |euy . U m>m dy3
E 10 52205 [e21uyda | pue (MOS) #OoM jo adoos pajielap e 8L/Lz/8 paroiddy Bumoijoy Buginsuoy | g
dojensp |w JueynsuD Byl "gL/LZ/8 U0 parciddy pieog panoiddy pieog pieog shep o8} 8LiLi6 v1¥'v6$ Joenu| 44y SlemM}og
"Uoea SYyjuoWw-Z | 10j maual
0} suofdo Z ypm 1oBJUOD JBBA-g "IU| 'sedInBS AUNoag s|emausl S32IAISS
13SI9AA Q) papleme JoBlUOD b.tzumw = 9L/SL/L U0 pieme ‘uohedo| ‘pA|lg eplol4 SLIEL/LL leak-auo 1800 |enuue u| _mwu_?_@m U._m-..-o
|euifiio paacsddy pieog ‘pieog (|0} 0] 9A0W 0] paroidde 05ZZ S1V¥D e saolnesg peaoaddy : 240l 000°282¢% fAunosag sooinleg
S9jIWWOD I — 81/8/LL penoidde pieog - gLIELILL piens Qunoss - 4/ ¥Z pieog 6LILERZL BLILIL “xouddy 1asiapm day Apinosg
S
"I0JOBJIUOD S30IAISS Jisuelieled S|y SE uolepodsuel) (ezoz nuyy slemaual
\W.E o) WM.__.H_.,_.__‘NMU 10 EmMMm_ cwmo chmEEoom: SIVD .S.Mﬂwqﬂ__.._ﬂ._. Humbw_oo leakauoz | 000'sL6'9% vav
s)nsas a9l uonen| | 014 8yl uo paseg : leak g /M JoBIUOD junowe .
Bugesw 394 —gL/z)L/L ‘Bunesw preog ge4 |un pausjep Japinold soIniag >_n%_~humwm jenuajod) HKe joenuoo dsuei) sasineg SAMAS
pieOg — 81/9L/1 "AIN 03 pieme paroidde pieog - gL/0z/z | Nsuei-eied palpesuon pieog LZIOEIY 21/9/5 jesh g AN e lisueljeled
d
0Z9'¥E$
821040
"000'06$ 40 ploysaiu} 5,039 0J12d 10}
BU) UIYIM ‘0Z9'PES JO (810} B 10J 20I0UD 0]ad 0} papieme 150D xouddy | (10 10301)
ag [Im IO 100N "0Z9LSS 2Q 1M 6LOZAD [0 Jepulews) ‘uondo [emaual 8Uo Yim 0£9°'L5$ | @o10yn oned
Joj oeRUOD *(0£9'98$ JO [BIOI B JB) pINY ISneuxs [esaip | GL/LE/ZL  UBnosyy  swiay BLILEZL
‘llo sulgun) olnespAy 1o} SIVD UIM S}oeiuod Apjusung | asay) Jo} payolos sem g1| ybnouy; jen4 azeaynuY
oum ‘(000°SLS JO [ejo} B Joj) |and zenBiy o) pepieme | ue os ‘azeaynuy 10 IO 6102 |dy zanByy Joy :
30 M 9Zsayliue ay) aisym 'papleme aq 0] [I0 Jojow | l1ojop Joy adejd ul JoeiUOD ul anoldde 1500 |10 (ezoanynuy) pue
pue azaaynue 10} g1] — 6L/2/y ‘paroidde pieog = gL/9L/y | OU sey Ajuaund SIvD 0} pieog 6LILEZL 6LILIL ‘xoiddy | |andg zenbiw g1l (103010) 1O
0
S)uBLIWO? | SBION _ papiaold panoiddy ajeq ajeq iy aleN adA] uonduasag
19Npold /S82IAIRS pieog pugy uels : Jopusp Jjuon CRIVVETS
SYjuow g 0} | ulysm uonoy pieog Buipuad sjosloid = anjg _ mou [eaosddy pieog spesu j wiay] UOIIIY = MOJIBA _ 6L0Z ‘9l AInr

pieog S1V9 10} buiysi juswiaindodd S1V9




“28M SIU} I3je| Juss a( |l pue
ZL 40 pesjsul sasng g Jo aseyaind ay) 1oayss 0] pabueyd
aq M "O’'d 2y} ‘wswabeuew a4 ‘gLOZ ‘020 Ul |[ercsdde
pleog aouis Buipuad ‘O'd @epdn = ZL/Lg/e (pioy

PIq 3y} uo yaj A pouad Aiaajag
uo) sasng g 1o anss! 0} wol Hd parcidde swowubissy | 0V'92L'900'GS Quow g| 0} 91
489 Od E 030 ? £ 9z = 8 §99] 9¢ 49pJa [ejay 2102 280I/M0N
Buniemy ="LL/LLip ‘syuow gy sl 8jep SAllER LULVL 0202 niy) 02222 LLv$ ainpayas Aisaneq
8yl 'O'd Buipuss aiojeg wey} wol ojul wy Ang 10 YoM sieak § Jano sanuaLWEe use
uo Builepy 'sesng g 10) B9 0} yeem siuyy panssi 9LI0ZITL 810z pauapio aq pappe + (8) sasng
8q [l / “O°d BUIPUBd = ZLIZLIL = BIIID 0 uss '0'd sseqond oy | 99MON | penss | "ZE9% | soudsnquag | 8L [esaIg
LL/1Z]L "@ouBUSUElN SIVD AQ paAisoel ueeq aney 0¥'Z9£'190'68 O'd IBIoL panosddy u fanisp usaq 2 Jo aseydIng _.w..wm__.U LIRS oIS !
S9SNQ g |[B JEUl PBLIOU SBM JUSWISINJ0IH — GLIE/L 2 08/'LzpS -eoud jUn sng pieog sasng g sey'0'd oplo g 971 ‘Bunn Buijox SI[INYaA
‘B112301d PUE 19A]4 MON ‘QAE WOl SPI] £ Panaoay ebL'L6LS suone}s
S1VD — LLI6L/I0L "M3IABL J3pun (|iS 3Je paAldal spiq uonels Buibieys ouposre
43 o8|
£ IIY = LLIPLILL ‘|eAoidde Joj pieoq |iny 0} wa) 3y} aAow pieme BuiBieyo £ /[eisu pue
01 P2JoA 394 "QAg Ag papiwugns pig snsuodsal pue psoud 6102 J0 91ep 3yl auo pue sng suoiels abuey _a..._oﬂ_mm_
1SaM0| By} 0} $8sNq JO0) GE 2UIBR ¢ Jo aseyaind au) oy ‘ZZ 924 Aq woJy sieak 2U0 10J 1509 Buibieyo e i
JOBIUOD JO plEME UE POPUSLILLODRI Sy — Bupjesw 394 ag ol Alaniag | g xau ey uun xo.ddy oLI108|D papusix3]
- 8L/ZLIL "S8sSNq ¢ 10} QA O} pieme panrocidde pieog ‘8LILIE 1oy pasn mwm_h_w%a n.__ﬂm:_ (use)
= 8L/9LL "6l/22/ Aq alep Auanllep yiwm sesng 99]3 € Jo | 'suonejs Buibieys asnoy | uo panss| Od aq uea BuIbseLp $-vie (¢) sesng
1910 BY} 10} QAG O} PERILIANS "O'd — 8L/L/E "9PBL 3q UBD -Ul € ||ejsul pue abue) 8L/9L/L 19enuod cpuesosng | PO 8 214)99|3
awAhed aiojeq suswalnnbal w14 1od sjuswnoop pieme | Alajeq papuaixam j00) oo panoiddy ¢ 10} a0y oL393|3 HooIg .
-1s0d uo Bupiep) penisoal Usaq ABY SISNQ € IV — 6L/LIG | ‘S9SN 21199)2 € BSBUDIN pieog EZOLIL0 | 8LIOLALO pig 210, ¢ sasng Buijioy S3|2MYSA
A
0zZ0Z aunr ssaooud
"saoud awes e /|/Le/8 zZ/LE/B ieak _mgwm.wwﬁﬂm
Ny} JoRjUOD puSi ybnoiy LULLI8 | a4 gop'oozs AL slemaual
0] paaibe tealpoos sjemaual niy) st siysoo 1894 8Uo Z /M
‘uBYIIN () 8 Jeakpoos) (2) STrmm——— 1eak 1e2ApooD) | abeisny 9L0z 0Z/L/8 Ny sieak
‘auoisabpug (1) wouy spig ¢ paneoay S1vyD “Buuado pig auo Z /M Upm 2711 € 10} JoBJUOD
L1/2Z/9 "JopuaA a|qisuodsal pue aAIsuodsal JSaMmo| sy} Sem LL/EL/2 panoidde 34 sieaf g 1oy | joERUOD ‘suoneladQ (aaueuajurepy)
auojsafipug jeu) paulwiaiep SBM )| -LL/0S/9 ‘suoisabpug LLBLIL oBNHUOD uauny (sieah ¢ allL aLl sasng 10}
0] J2BAUOD JO PJEME UB puswwodal sydag juswainooid LLI8LIL panosddy ey 10} 1500 159) seJllawy Addng
pue JUBN S1VD-LLELL "LL/8LIL U0 parciddy pieog panoiddy preog pizog 0z/15/8 LVUILIB 000°009% | ouoisebpug | jeusien asean adll
1
SAS YAV 3 OdV “IAY e o —
lo) abessnon SOURUBIUEW i S90IAIBS
. ‘ ! Auesrepp UBLIBAA *
BL/LE/L TUUL BL/L/8 WO SWRISAS WAY 8 OdY TTAY | Aueuepp 3 2ouBUuiR)y SLILLIL 9 ‘saluBLEM ‘Uoddng yajepeinoy
1o} abesanod Auenem pue poddns Los) mausl 0} [eacidde ‘yoddng yoa | panoiddy ‘poddns yoa} alemyos yoa |
pieog Buipuad way| - 8LZLIL "8LILLIL U0 pancsddy pieog |  gL/zL/L panoidde g pieog L/LEIL 8LIL/8 pesksuo | YIBIWBINOY | sojsopeg Siemjjog
QPIAOI 1 aje a)e awe adA uondiioss
b ey papiAoid peroiddy | ajeq 1eQ iy N 1 ndussag
jonpoid /sealnies pieog pug Mes JOpuap 1uon ERIPNETS
Syjuowl ¢ 0] | ulyym uondy pleog Bulpuad s)oaloid = anjg _ mou [eacuddy pieog spaau | wa}| UCHIY = MO||BA _ 6L0Z ‘91 AInp

pieog S1VyD 10} Bunsi juswaindoid S1vDH




‘lemausy
sk auQ 'ziLoz uebag nuon Bup
‘sjsa} Bnup uo asealoul pgog e Ajuo ‘saokojdwa aAlsuSS Aj9jes 1o) SeoInIas 20IAI85 JO SANsUaS Ajajeg Joj s20IMISS v B O
UIM NSHI Ui 1D0BQUOD [BMBURI YlUoW | 8SNge 8oUBisans/ [oyodly g Brug Joj seoinias Z506L0Z Od SyuoW Z 1 wpy Aued payl
-z} au) Buipuaixa sI S1vD — BLBIE | Joensiiwpy Buikped paul pelepuBW Y14 | guo usmm 0Z/0E/¥ 6LILIS 000°51L$ NSHI £ 104yod|y @ Bniqg
(mainay 1yBisiang
‘gauelsissy | mainay JUBISIaAD Y.L d 6L0ZAL 10} 3oUBISISSY anlsuayaidwon
goue|dwon (4092) MBINTY MBINDY-1504 ‘Hoddng UoIDY 2AID2U0Y) SYSE)
wbisiano aAisuayaidwioy Vid apnjoul 0} "B1L0Z Ul [_luuaLl] ] 4 Buiwoadn 19281024 Od so@jeloossy V.Ld 610ZAd)
"PaINDaXa ‘pazileuy JOBAUOD — GL/9/Z | 4O uoieledsid yum S1vD ISISSE 0] JUBJNSUCD | juos uapum 6LILEI8 SLIVZITL 158°LYS 8 Bopald aouejsissy asuefjdwo)
"diysispes| S1vD pue pieog
"g19|dwo? o} syuow g Asiewixosdde | o) Juas aq jim podal [eul4 Apmis uoesuadwion S99|MOS
3q pinoys auljawil] "s1vyo Jof [esodoud AJejes 1o} sjaspeLl Jejiwis o} aiedwos pajeuILLa) Jijeueg
papiwgns  Jsaybejen - 8L/0Z/LLE pue diysispes| S1vD Uim 198w 0] JUBJNSUCD | nuog uspum nun 6LILIL 000's¥$ Jaybejien Apnig dwoy Aiejeg
"pazijeuld J9BRUOD — BLIZ LIV
‘8L/LE/ZL UBnoay) pusixe pue
{GZ9'ZL$ J0O JUnowe JUSLND 0} 9/ '8LS
ppPY ﬁmummE«. Penuoy -gL/9z/L
‘6L/5L/S ybnoly) puaxs pue 06L'Z$
PPY papuswly 30B1U0D — BLI6LIL (e8e (e8¢ wal) sbuimeiqjendasuog
"6L02/1/6 UBNOIY) pudXe PUB O¥Y'ZLS | -Md '8NS HEBWEBAA / BUBLIOS 1B sjuswanoidu| 1508102 Od Wy XE *au| ‘alon HEW[EA\ BUBLIOD
PPY :papuswy 319Bjju0D — 6L/ZZ/S | QNH JSuell wusiul sy} apiAcid (M JUBYNSUCD | suod usnum 6LILI6 8LI9LIY 028°9r$ ’? 80JUOH Y
1y4g
P YUueld B 1D Jisuel )
149 peoy jueld pue Jajus) JIsuel | elielogjesadiMes
JOPUSA 0} | BUBLIOD B S90IAISS  uoioaedsu|  uepisay Z606L0Z Od dnoig uondadsuj Juapisay
Juss pue paINdaxs PBNUOD — 61L/8Z/S | Pue Buysa) sjeusiely epinoid 0] J0JOBNUOD | [uon usnLm 0Z/0E/E 6LiZI¥ 000°0S$ ejod 8yl @ Bupsa sjeusie
Kamng sapijioe
Jopusn 0} | %@ uojoadsu| BUS [IND B puE JUSWSSSSSY | ogosrozod | MEIS JouE “au| PAIE epuIold 0522
JUSS pue pejnoexe JoBjUOD — 61/9/9 | Wuauodwion Bulping B aje|dwod o} Jueynsuc) | suop uspum | SAEp 6 6LI6ZIE 005°8Y$ ‘HO3109 S.1VD Jo Jusuissassy
“JOPU2A 0} uoneolddy Juels pue joalold | Hg syl 1o 8PL6L0Z Od iy xep uopeiodion | 8JURISISSY uoledlddy
JUSS pUB pajNISXa JORNUOD — BL/OE/S | SIO3dSE URH3D UM S1VD ISISSEe 0] JUBYNSUOD | suoo usuum | GLILEZL sLIvzZIS LL9'GhS g1NH uels giing Loda sn
paroiddy aje( ajeq aweN
sjusaWIWog PapIAOLd S82IAIBS 039 pug junowyy lopuap uonduoasag

‘epuabe Bujeaw pieog w_,__cm__m_, uc aq 0} PaNPayos s

030 Aq j08l0ud panoidde jsejey sjeaipur siybijybiy mojak

2|qejieAR
UOHEPUBLUWICORY plemy Joenuo] °, 0F JequanoN Ag enp slemaual )
aq |m sjesodoly -siasodoid _m_EEn_wn_ aidyinw oy payoijos 1eak MMMMHWHWMM m_‘_mm;%ho&wmwpu%a
u29q sey 444 — 9L/0L/LL "panl@dal siesodold ¢ Buowe Sa2IAJBS alemyog 9Li0zizL auo Z/m snid 000'28% de uBisac-a
1saubiy pasoas oym ‘01607 Jusjeao] o} 94 Aq pancidde pue BuiisoH sapnjoui parosddy siesh ¢ ubisagay 21607 seoiniag Isag-ay
PIEMY — 9L/SL/Z) "3)SGaM Mau payoune| — £Loz Ainr -ubiseg-2y SNSG3M | pueog BLILE/ZL | LLILO/LO sjewnsg jusjeron a)sasMA 9HSOIMN
: 1 M
. ] C ¢ il i L b - - » [ i _—
‘SJUBWILWOY [ SOION uoz Ms&‘—sfo..m vu..,.'ohnn@ ajeq B_un_ Jwy SwieN !—h.-. :n.uﬁ_n_._uman_
POld /S8d1Al8g pieog puz MEIS Jopusp Jjuon 20IAIag
m__u:oE £ 01l UM _._o_uu< pieog Buipued syoeloid = anjg [ mou |eaosddy pieog spaau | way| uoBIY = MOlIoA | L0z ‘a1 hinp

pieog S1vD 1o} Buysiy juswaindoid SIVD




L

[83UM 3 PIN|d UOISSILUSUEBIL "[IO JOJON

10 1829 - 10} PIG 1SaMO] Ay} sem IO (piny
JSEG UNS — "Sjnpold pajeey |0 1o }sNeyYxa
Asaaljap pue aseyaind ay) oy siaiddns 12saip
2jeiedas 7 0} pleme pig mau ‘|io aulgqny
pancidde pieog —2L/LL/L "Aliouyine alnespAH)
ploysaiyl 030 Yy uim are pue 09'9¢%
BL/LE/ZL NIUI BL/L/L Jo pouad ay) Joy ong
1eak BU0 Joj paMBUBI BQ (M SIOBIUOD Zonbip
asey] ‘lend zenbiy wol sjonpoid Embcou._._umm
10} 019'9€$ puUE JSEOD UNS WOy 10 D00 0G%
spnposd 10} §90°ZL$ O] }SOD |ENUUE “azaaljjUe pUE |10 JOJoUI BB sWway z asay | 30 junowe
pajoaloid sy Buusmol Agasayy ‘abesn ‘6102 Jeak au) Joy 000'0.$ AlRlewixoidde | PIBOE MO (eseaib
pajedionue [euibuo au) UBY} $S3] YN Je pajewnsa si aoud se ‘leacidde oy preog oy | St PIOUSSIUL [93um pue
ale 210z JAD 10} Spnpold pejeley | 0B |im asayy sAep Og 18U au) uim payolos | SE Sroidde piny "sues
IO 2uy Joj abesn 8y} eyl paulLLIB}ep 8Q [IM 91| M3U \/ "PIQ B4 || ‘SaSERIOUI 01 9jqe anayIuks
usaq Ssey ) - ZLSLEZL Cludy soud JayBiy 0} anp ‘pameusi jou sway | S O30 SLVD ‘lio Jean))
Ul 029'LSS Joy ZanBiy 0} 10BNUOD |10} E,_WMMN,_M% S90ZI%
anoidde o) pleog "0.9'0g$ 10} SWal "2SBaIOU| J0) SUOIIBINDIED |dd apiroid <hakaLiog ISeon 0202 Uef 404 610z Ydeg
1210 Joj SV UIm JOBNJUOD AJUBLING | ©} SP33U JOPUSA ‘[emausl 3y} JO Sl 18 |dd au} 1eak auo ung Ag ssao01d Anbu) [emauss pelg
Aoy pue ‘pO0'GLE Jo} ezeaunuy uo paseq jusunsnipe 89lid "ZZ/9L/L Ubnouy) | ¢ seyioenuon (eaurueuiEp)
2y} pepieme aq pinom |an4 zanbiy 10 spouad seah (L) auo aAI1S$922NS () INOY BL/LEZL (|10 Jol0|) sjonpoid pejejey
‘029'¥ES Jo} IO Jolo|y au) papieme | o} dn sgejiene suoido |emauRY 9BNUOD LL0Z | MUUY LLILL/L 0297¢S
8 pnom 2010UD 0M12d 9zasluy ‘61L/LE/ZL UBnoIU 19BIUOD "BZaauuy pueR IO panoidde RG] e 1) sonddng pue
pue |IQ 10J0 1o PaYaIjos gl | nmm_.__u_e Jojopy oy uondo [emauai (1) 2Uo sey g1 6102 pleog 6LILERL 8L/LIL onad [eusiei o
‘Bupesw
pieog Jodosd oy e pewesaid
g pinom udiym  ‘Joenuos  Jabuol syuow ¢
B Ol Jaud 0} asooyd Aew S1yD ‘Aessaoau Jeuoiippe
‘wesboid joid 8Py siuy panocudde | punoy se seale JOUl0 pue SaAIes SLVD ue mauai
pieog eyp pue Bugssw pieog | JBY} SBAIE JUBLING BUY) JO SPISING JBYYS S8JNOI 0] uoldom ul Em._mo._n_
3U}) 1e passnasip Sem SIYL — GG | SLYD anes o) wesboid joid ysuenosony 6LISLIL 6LI6LI9 8LI0ZIZL 000°sZ$ ‘o0 suel) 10]id }isuesjoldIN
“JOB1JUOD JO PIBME DUIPUSLLLLIODS] uoneoldal SMY g @DeI0}S pnojo Juslusde|dal ————— pepuaLILIOoa)
12)9] 030 wag ‘aimuap | juejsul ‘sajepdn JA g ‘uonnjos Jamiss dnyoeq -8L02# d4y lape7 030
papUSWIWD3] J3d siesodoud | Janes suo i e pue sapnpu| “Jamas dnyoeq s saibojouyds] aoue|ddy
€ PaAIS03J pue pasiueApy - 810z 4dy | Bunisixa SivD Joj waeishs || dn-joeqg Jesk G | zgosLoz Od £Z/0£/9 8L/LIL 82£°823$ 8INJUaA danlag dn yoeg ||
‘suonjoun) MH pazienads ‘papaau se 030 aul Aq paubisse syse) oS 1BERUGS
18Y10 pue aouejsisse yH Bugnsuo) | Jeyjo pue souepinb ‘sisAleue  ‘uoleNSLOD 8L/210 1294 BUQ Bunjnsuop 030 ay) 0} souelsissy [eloads HH
810z unp '0zoz 'LE Aey ybnouyy | ‘sonpe jo Aem Aq SPOIAI9S/SE0IN0SAl MM ¥9L6L0Z Od (Y 054) dH joenuoy
1oejjuod  papuadlxg — GL0Z  eunf | aanebiseaur jenuepyuod sspinold Jueynsuod | guog uspum 0ZILEIS 8L/LI9 000°05$ HalaAg 9. juejinsuod yH
"000'05$ JUNOLE 10BIIU0D XN v jo dnoy
"g10Z Jely 'sabueys sayio oN ‘LOZ | (Buikgqol) ssoinias jeuonedNpT puE SUOKE|RY _;..ﬂ_%_.wmm_.wn_ JY XE >ma¥=mw Bupnsuo)
ybnoay) 1oenuoo puaixy — BLOZ JEl | ‘sieyy  |eluewwanos sapinoid  uejnsucy HUOY USPUAN BLILEZL 6LIL/L 000‘05$ ulayinos SUOolje|ay JUBLILIBAOL)
000°0g$ Jo Xew pue
1U/0G$ 10} pals]| S80S U adueUld JO
10108110 Aq pepaau aouelsIsSY — BE0Z | 018 ‘suoieouooal JUBg ‘sajgenadal sjuelb jo
Rew shep 06 ‘xosdde Joj PENUOD | UONEIYUSA ‘SJUNODE BUIIDUODAI Ul BOUBISISSE | 11610z Od joesjuon
JUaNd puslxa o} S1vD — 6L0Z AInp | um Juawpedaq adueul4 apinoid 0} Emn_xzucoo JUOD USPLAR 6LIS/IOL 6LISIY 000°0£$ SLIBH P2IA juejnsuoy) jeioueuly
'6L02 ',6L ‘uopisod 12010
AON yBnoiuy 02 AON UO Hiom Emmg Bunessdo 181D S1VD au) Joj yoreas ayy ul ﬂwwﬂm_ 211 uonisod
0} .6l JOQWSAON UO Jopuan o) juss | wes) juswabeuew Joluss s pue Sy Isisse 1228102 Od Y XEW ‘fuedwon 00D SL1VD 410} sadiMag
SEM pa300id 0} 200N — 8LOZ ‘6L AON | 03 Hoddns jeuoisssjosd apiosd o) JUBYNSUCD | guopuanum | GLIGLILL 8LI0Z/LL 000°sZ$ ’2 1038 IIIM Yyoleag aAanndaxy
SJUBLIWOD | SBION papiAocid panoiddy ajeq ajeqg Wy awieN adA) uonduoasa(
1onpoid [S92IAI8S pieog pug uels Jopuap nuon 391A19S
syjuow g o} | ulylm uonoy pleog Buipuad sysaloid = anjg _ mou [eaoiddy pieog spaau | W) UOIIDY = MO||BA [ 610Z ‘9t AInp

pieog S1VvD 10} Bunsi juswaindoid S1VI




"SISeq pepaau

Se Ue U0 '‘OvyD pue Jabeuepy juswaindolg Bunnsuop
1/S#$ tajey 'suoiouny Juswainoold | ayy Aq paubisse se Syse) JUSWSIN0ld Jaulo SLIOL/E jusiainoo.d
pezieoads JBUo pue  LoUBJSISSE | pUB ‘S20IAISS [|BO-UO, UM Bupiom Ajesyoads Z0181L0Z Od iy xep Zapueuiay juejinsuod
Wuswainoold Bupinsuo) — gioz 1des | ‘ssoiuss juswainoold sspineld  JuBlNSUCD uon uspLm 61/6/6 8LIOLIG 000°05% Ayyey juswiaindodd
"pIN|< Isneyxs
[9S31g pue 10 BuIgIN| SINeIpAH Joy
pIg 1S8MO] SEM |ond zenbiyy eseais)
papiaoid paaoiddy aleq aleq ETIETY adA| uopduasag
uswiwo $9}0 : 2
s 0/ S9jON 19npold /Sa8dlnles pieog pu3g uels Ay JOpuap auon CRITVETS
syjuouw ¢ 03 | ulyum uonoy pieog Buipuad syosfoid = anig | mou [enciddy pieog spaau j wiaj] UOCIOY = MOJISA | 610z ‘9| AInr

pieog S1Y9D 404 bunysi juswaingsoid S1vV9




